The Confederation of British

Email address: admin@cbsgb.co.uk

Website: www.cbsgb.co.uk

The Confederation of British Surgery Rule Book





Contents

Page			
1	Introduction		
2	Mission Statement and Objectives		
4	Membership		
7	Contribution and Benefits		
8	Obligations of Membership		
	Finance of CBS		
9	Meetings of the CBS		
	Executive Council		
11	President and Vice President		
12	Committees and Panels		
	General Secretary		
13	Delegation		
	Regional Structure		
	Right to be Accompanied		
	Workplace Representation		
14	Legal Services		
	Revision of Constitution		
15	Funds		
16	Assets and Trustee Provisions		
17	Expenses		
	Political Organisation		
	Membership Discipline		
18	Official Announcements		
	Balloting of Members and Industrial Action		
19	Voluntary Dissolution		
	Schedule of Founding Members		

1.0 Introduction

- > The CBS was established on 31st May 2017.
- ➤ The Registered Office of the Union shall be c/o Ballards LLP, Oakmoore Court, Kingswood Road, Hampton Lovett, Droitwich, Worcestershire WR9 OQH or such other place as may be decided upon by the Executive Council.
- This Rule Book applies to all members of the Union and represents the entirety of the rules applicable to members of the Union, save as explicitly provided for under this Rule Book.
- ➤ The need for a representative trade union seeking to protect the interests of surgeons, anaesthetists and their extended team follows extensive discussion over some years and recently corroborated by results from a survey commissioned by the Federation of Surgical Speciality Associations (FSSA) which had a response of over 1500 surgeons and which showed widespread support for this concept.
- The primary aim of the CBS would be to act as a trade union for surgeons, anaesthetists and all health professionals with an interest in surgery (e.g. non-medically qualified staff who work in surgically related posts such as pump technicians, surgical care practitioners) and to look after their interests irrespective of Surgical Royal Colleges or Surgical Specialty Association affiliation.
- > Such an association would be able to involve itself in matters germane to terms and conditions of service, contracts of employment, litigation, insurance and other matters which the majority of Surgical Colleges and the Specialty Associations are effectively excluded from on the basis of their charitable status.
- ➤ Eligible individuals for membership of the CBS would normally be expected to hold contracts of employment which explicitly state that they are personally involved in the performance of surgical procedures or actively involved in the support of practicing surgeons.
- ➤ It is our anticipation that the majority of eligible members will hold contracts with Trusts (or equivalent in the devolved nations) and, as such, be employees of the NHS. Therefore, a majority of members will be public sector employees. In this respect an aim and objective of the CBS would be to on behalf on members collectively inn terms of negotiation of terms and conditions of service.

2.0 Mission Statement

The CBS has the following mission statement:

"The aim of the CBS is to represent the interests of individual surgeons and anaesthetists, or members of the surgical team, with respect to terms and conditions of service, their working environment in Trusts or independent sector, and to arbitrate on their behalf in the event of employment related disputes or litigation. By protecting the interests of individual members, the CBS seeks to improve patient care".

3.0 Objectives

The CBS shall have the following objectives:

- 3.1 So far as may be lawful, to organise, recruit and represent workers (surgeons, and all members of the extended surgical team) and act on behalf of members collectively.
- 3.2 To secure the complete organisation of all workers eligible for its membership within the United Kingdom.
- 3.3 To improve the conditions and protect the interests of its members.
- 3.4 To obtain and maintain reasonable hours of labour, proper rates of wages, and general conditions of service; to settle disputes between its members and their employers, and to regulate the relations between them by the withholding of labour or otherwise.
- 3.5 To promote equal opportunities and equal treatment for all members and oppose discrimination on grounds of sex, race, ethnic origin, disability, age, sexual orientation or religion.
- 3.6 To further the interest of its members by representation in the United Kingdom, European and Scottish Parliaments or the Welsh or Northern Irish Assemblies or on Local Governing Bodies, and to employ such portion of the Funds of the Union as may be subscribed in procuring such representation.
- 3.7 To provide assistance to members when out of employment through causes over which they have no control, or through unjust treatment, or through any dispute existing between an employer and a member or members of the Union.
- 3.8 To provide legal or other assistance, when necessary, in matters pertaining to the employment of members, or for securing compensation for members who suffer injury by accidents in their employment.

- 3.9 To provide educational facilities for members.
- 3.10 To make grants to, and share in the management, or take control of any institution from which members may derive benefit, and to have power to render, as occasion may arise, assistance to other trade unions, and for other lawful purposes; also to provide funds for the relief of members in sickness, disablement, distressful circumstances and for their internment.
- 3.11 To compile and keep a register of all members out of employment or desirous of a change of situation and submit names to employers who are making appointments.
- 3.12 To aid in, and join with, any other union or group of unions having for their objects, or one of them the promotion of the interests of workpeople within the scope of the Trade Union Acts.
- 3.13 To provide legal assistance and/or independent professional advice to members subject to disciplinary procedures, litigation in the civil or criminal courts, or GMC enquiries.
- 3.14 To do all such other things as may in the opinion of the Executive Council be incidental or conducive to the attainment of these objects.

4.0 Membership

- 4.1 The CBS shall be a general union and its membership is available to all who work in surgery or in surgically related professions. Membership is also available to medical students who are members of their University Surgical Society, or Surgical Specialty Society. Medical qualification is not a prerequisite of membership. Membership is open to all workers without distinction of race, ethnic origin, religion, age, gender, disability or sexual orientation. The CBS may grant Fellow status to suitably qualified medical Practitioners and Member status to those in Allied Health Professions and non-medical professional advisers.
- 4.2 Lifetime memberships for a one-off fixed fee (number and fee to be agreed by Executive Council) can be offered as required and will be available to both new and existing members.
- 4.3 Retired membership at a reduced annual subscription will be discontinued from 1st
 January 2021. This will not affect the rights and privileges of current retired members.

4.4 As from 1st October 2025 there will be the following categories of membership (payable by annual or monthly direct debit):

Member £180 /yr (+ small admin fee)
Associate * £84 /yr (+ small admin fee)
Perioperative Practitioner £68 /yr (+small admin fee)
CT1 – CT2 £3.50 per month (24 months)
FY1 & FY2 £2.00 per month (24 months)

Medical students who are members of their university surgical society or a surgical specialty society are entitled to free membership for the duration of their undergraduate degree.

- * Associate to include trainees and non-medical staff.
- ** Honorary Fellow: on recommendation of the Executive Council
- 4.5 The qualifications for full membership of the Union shall be as follows:
 - (a) Without prejudice to the commencing membership of the Union, all workers employed in surgery or allied professions will be eligible. A majority of members are likely to be medically qualified individuals employed as surgeons or anaesthetists in the UK and Ireland.
 - (b) The Union will be subject in due course to any modifications of constitution or practice as will make it accord with any general plan of trade union reorganisation formulated by an authority set up by or under the assent of the Trade Union Congress, and which is made applicable to all trade union organisations alike.
 - (c) Applicants must, in accordance with the Trade Union Acts, be not less than 16 years of age.
- 4.6 CBS recognises that a worker means an individual who works or normally works or seeks to work in the following capacity:
 - (a) Under a contract of employment. Most commonly this will be an employing Trust, the responsible officer of which is the CEO acting on behalf of the NHS.
 - (b) Under any other contract (whether express or implied, and, if express, whether oral or in writing) whereby he/she undertakes to perform personally any work or services for another party such as hospitals in the independent sector or those who are self-employed.
 - (c) In employment under or for the purposes of a government department (otherwise that as member of the naval, military or air forces of the Crown in so far as any such employment does not fall within paragraph (a) or (b) above.

- 4.7 Any eligible person may apply for membership by completing the appropriate application form agreeing to be bound by the rules of the Confederation and submitting it to the Confederation office or by electronic means as may be provided for via the Union's website. An applicant shall become a member when his/her application has been approved and he/she has been entered into the register of members. Such approval process will require receipt by the Union of the current contribution applicable under these rules.
- 4.8 Each member must notify the Union's membership department of any subsequent change of address, and in the absence of such notice, the Union shall be entitled to treat the address shown on that member's application form as the member's address for all correspondence.
- 4.9 Each member must notify the Union's membership department of any subsequent change of workplace or contribution category status.
- 4.10 The annual membership contribution is set at £180 for medically qualified surgeons/anaesthetists, and £69 for non-medically qualified personnel working in surgically related areas, and this contribution may be revisable yearly as agreed by the Executive Council.
- 4.11 Admission of membership is at the discretion of the Executive Council.

"At CBS, our mission is to foster collaboration and address the unique challenges present in the surgical realm. We are dedicated to advocating for surgical teams, safeguarding their professional and employment interests. In the dynamic and demanding landscape of surgery, CBS stands as a representative voice for the surgical community."



5.0 Contribution and Benefits

- 5.1 It shall be the personal responsibility of the member to maintain contributions and avoid arrears in all circumstances. Any period during which a member's contributions are 1 year or more months in arrears shall break continuity of membership for the purpose of the qualification required to be a member registered by the Union set out in rule 10 save where a member establishes to the satisfaction of the Executive Council that the arrears arose through no fault of that member. A member whose contributions are recorded by the Union as more than 2 years in arrears may be excluded from membership by the Union posting notice to that effect to the member. A member so excluded from membership may apply for reinstatement which may be allowed on such terms as to the payment of outstanding arrears as the Executive Council may consider appropriate.
- 5.2 The Executive Council shall determine the period of membership necessary prior to the member attaining eligibility for benefits, and any period during which contributions are in arrears which shall remove such eligibility.
- 5.3 The Executive Council shall determine the level of contributions for each member.
- 5.4 The Executive Council shall determine the scope and level of benefits.
- 5.5 The Union may pay dispute benefit in such circumstances and on such terms as are decided by the Executive Council from time to time.
- 5.6 The Union may provide legal assistance as follows:
 - (a) A member who is entitled to benefit who suffers injury or disease arising out of or in connection with his/her employment shall be entitled to such legal advice and representation, and on such terms, as the Executive Council may consider appropriate.
 - (b) A member seeking legal assistance must ensure that a request in the appropriate form is lodged at the appropriate Union office in sufficient time and with sufficient information to enable the request to be considered and appropriate action taken.
 - (c) A member who required advice and/or representation on a problem relating to the member's employment which first arose at a time when the member was entitled to benefit, and which cannot be resolved through the member's workplace representative should refer the matter to the appropriate Regional Officer. The Union may provide such advice and/or representation as the Executive Council shall consider appropriate, whether by a full-time officer or otherwise, and on such terms as the Executive Council shall consider appropriate.
 - (d) The Executive Council may provide such additional legal advice and representation to members in accordance to paragraph 28 of this Constitution rules.

- (e) The Executive Council may extend legal assistance to a member who is not otherwise entitled to benefits.
- (f) A member who is given advice and/or representation under this rule shall provide all relevant information and co-operate fully with the compilation of evidence for any legal proceedings and shall comply with any other obligations and/or conditions set out in any arrangements for the provision of legal assistance. If a member fails to do so or provided false or misleading information or fails to act upon the advice of those appointed to represent them, the Executive Council may at its absolute discretion annul all legal assistance or with draw any further legal assistance to that member.
- 5.7 The Executive Council shall have discretion to provide additional benefits.

6.0 Obligations of Members

- 6.1 A member of the Union must comply with these rules and with any duty or obligation imposed on that member by or pursuant to these rules whether in their capacity as a member, a holder of a lay office or as a full-time officer.
- 6.2 A member must not knowingly, recklessly or in bad faith provide the Union with false or misleading information relating to a member or any aspect of the Union's activities.
- 6.3 A motion shall not be submitted by or on behalf of the Union or any group or body within the Union to an organisation or body outside the Union if that motion is inconsistent with existing Union policy.
- 6.4 When acting as a representative of the Union at a meeting of an organisation or body outside the Union a member shall speak and vote in accordance with the policy of the Union and with any decision taken by the Union's representatives at that meeting which is consistent with the Union's policy.
- 6.5 A Member shall not bring the CBS or the profession into disrepute.

7.0 Finance of the CBS

The financial year of the CBS shall be the calendar year, but this may be changed by resolution of the Executive Council. The subscription/membership fee scale shall be set by the Executive Council. All members shall pay an annual subscription fixed by the Executive Council.

8.0 Meetings of the CBS

- 8.1 The CBS shall hold an annual general meeting not later than four months after the end of each AR21 submission deadline. At least 5 members of the CBS or Executive Council may at any time require the Secretary to convene a general meeting of the CBS. In convening such a meeting, the Secretary shall give not less than 21 days' notice to members.
- 8.2 The meetings of the Executive Council shall be held as often as necessary at the Central Office or at such other places as may be most expedient for the transaction of the Union's business. A special meeting may be summoned on the requisition of a majority of the voting members of the Committee, which shall give six clear days' notice of such meeting and shall state the object for which the meeting is called. No business shall be transacted other than that stated on the notice convening the special meeting. A special meeting may be called at any time when considered necessary by the General Secretary. For attendance at Executive Council meetings and for delegations within the United Kingdom, members of the Executive Council may from time to time decide, plus compensation for actual loss of wages.

9.0 Executive Council

- 9.1 The affairs of the CBS shall be directed by an Executive Council comprising the President, Vice President and four executive officers elected from the membership.
- 9.2 To concur with guidance from the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992, Section 46 the maximum period of office for a member of the Executive Council should be three years unless re-elected for one additional term. In the absence of election membership should cease.
- 9.3 The immediate Past President of CBS sits on the Executive Council for 1 year after demitting office.
- 9.4 The General Manager shall be co-opted onto the Executive Council as a non-voting member.
- 9.5 Executive Officers are expected to attend at least 70% of Executive Board meetings held in a 12-month period and failure to attend 3 consecutive meetings will, in the absence of extenuating circumstances or active engagement in CBS business, terminate their Board position and a further election will be held. There is nothing to preclude an Executive

Officer re-standing for election. A Register of Attendance and Minutes of all meetings will be recorded by the Administrative Manager.

9.6 The Executive Council may make bye-laws governing the conduct of elections including provision to phase retirements. An additional eight members may be proposed to be coopted onto the Executive Board with agreement at Executive Council meetings or at the AGM. The Federation of Surgical Specialty Associations (FSSA) President will be offered a seat on the Executive Board as an additional co-opted member for the duration of their FSSA term. The ASiT and BOTA presidents will also be offered a seat on the Executive Board as an additional co-opted member for the duration of their term. Representatives from Specialty Associations, Training Associations and Allied Health Care Professional Associations may be invited to sit on the Exec Board as Advisers (non-voting), as required and in-line with the ongoing development of CBS. The CBS Executive Council may seek advice from other professionals as appropriate.

9.7 Confidentiality

Members of the Executive Council shall treat all information and documents provided to them in the course of their duties as confidential except —

- a) when authorised by the CBS President or
- b) when legally required to do so.

Executive Council Members must pay particular attention to protect personal data in accordance with the principles of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) which in the UK have been incorporated into the Data Protection Act (2018). Members must not use confidential information acquired in the course of their duties for personal advantage.

9.8 Conflict of Interest

Each member of the Executive Council must, when acting in their capacity, put the interests of the CBS before their own personal and/or professional interests. Members of the Executive Council must declare any potential conflict of interest to the Chairperson at the earliest opportunity and complete a Declaration of Interest Form.

9.10 Protecting the CBS Reputation

Any member of the Executive Council shall not speak, in their capacity, to the media or in a public forum without the prior knowledge and approval of the CBS President. The Executive Council shall have full control of the business of the Union, and shall have power to do anything not inconsistent with these Rules or the Acts of Parliament under which the Union is certified as a trade union. In the event of any question arising on which the Rules are silent or obscure, the Executive Council shall have power to decide thereon.

- 9.11 The Executive Council may make bye-laws governing the conduct of elections including provision to phase retirements. Additional members co-opted by the Executive Council.
- 9.12 Each member of the Executive Council shall have one vote. The President shall have a second, or casting, vote in the event of equality.

10.0 President and Vice President

- 10.1 The Executive Council shall, at its first meeting in each financial year, confirm/elect a President to hold office until the first meeting in the following financial year. All elections shall be by secret ballot. The Executive Council shall also confirm/elect a Vice President. No person may hold the office of President, or of Vice President, for more than three consecutive years, however in extenuating circumstances, and with agreement of the Executive Council, the President may be asked to serve a second term of up to three years.
- 10.2 In the event of the President or the Vice President resigning or ceasing to be a member of the Executive Council, the Council shall have power to elect a replacement to serve for the remainder of the term.
- 10.3 If, at the end of a President's permitted term, a suitable candidate is not found, the President may, with the agreement of the Executive Council, continue in office for a further period of up to twelve months.

11.0 Publicity

The Trade Union shall publish an annual report on its activities. This document will be published on the Trade Union's website.

12.0 Committees and Panels

The Executive Council may establish and maintain sub-committees and project groups, and may delegate matters to them. The Executive Council may appoint technical panels to advise and assist it.

13.0 General Secretary

The shadow Executive Council shall appoint an interim General Secretary who shall be responsible to it for the management of the Trade Union and who shall also be the principal representative of the Trade Union and the principal policy adviser to the shadow Executive Council.

If recognition of CBS is approved the shadow EC will meet and agree the appointment of a General Secretary as well as a date for the first annual general meeting which will be held within 12 months of recognition. At this AGM members of the EC

would be confirmed by election by the members and the appointment of a General Secretary ratified.

"CBS firmly believes that by providing surgical teams with a safe, well-resourced, and well-managed environment, we can improve outcomes for patients."



14.0 Delegation

The Executive Council and the General Secretary may delegate any of their powers.

15.0 Regional Structure

- General: to be determined
- 2. Regional Committee Conditions: to be determined
- 3. Authority and Function: to be determined

16.0 Right to be Accompanied – Section 10 of the Employment Relations Act 1999

All members have the right to be accompanied at a grievance and discipline hearing by a Badged Trade Union Officer.

CBS maintain that it does not intend to badge members as officials so that they can make use of Section 10 of the Employment Relations Act 1999, to accompany works for commercial gain.

17.0 Workplace Representation

- 17.1 At each workplace, the members employed at that workplace, shall elect from amongst themselves, at least every two years, one or more of the following representatives:

 Workplace representatives; Safety representatives; Learning representatives; Equality representatives.
- 17.2 Election to one representative role shall not preclude election to another such role within the same workplace. The method of election shall be by such means as authorised by relevant guidance which shall be issued by the Executive Council from time to time.
- 17.3 The Executive Council may group workplaces together for the purposes of representation where the number of members at each workplace is so small that representation and bargaining for the individual workplaces is not, in the opinion of the Executive Council, practicable.

- 17.4 The constituency of a workplace representative shall be the workplace from which they were elected, or such grouping of workplaces as was defined by the Executive Council. Following election of a workplace representative, the appropriate Regional Officer shall be informed of the election by the elected representative without delay. The Regional Officer shall ensure that the Regional Industrial Sector Committee and the Union's membership department are informed of the date of the election and the identity, constituency and contact details of the elected workplace representative.
- 17.5 The Executive Council may issue guidance on the powers and procedures of the Regional Industrial Sector Committee in relation to ratification of such election. The Regional Industrial Sector Committee shall ensure compliance with such procedures.

18.0 Legal Services

- 18.1 At CBS we recognise that one of the key reasons members will join the union is to benefit from the legal services which may be provided. We aim to provide a full range of legal services, such as employment related advice and representation, help plan the future by providing a will writing service, Powers of Attorney and Living Wills and seeking personal injury compensation.
- 18.2 Some of the services provided are free, some are provided at a discounted rate.
- 18.3 All our services will be provided by expert legal advisers from a panel of law firms instructed by CBS.
- 18.4 CBS will ensure that the law firms have extensive work experience working with unions; return 100% of compensation awarded to members in their claims; use law firms that understand the member workplace; law firms that have a close relationship with CBS and its activities.

19.0 Revision of the Constitution

This Constitution shall be amended by the CBS provided that at least 75% of the members of the CBS present at the meeting vote in favour of amendments of which prior notice has been given.

20.0 Funds

- 20.1 The General Secretary and employees of the Union authorised by him/her shall subject to the endorsement of the Executive Council have authority to open and operate such bank accounts on behalf of the Union as he/she may consider appropriate.
- The funds of the Union may be used in accordance with the provision of these rules for the payment of provident benefits as defined in Section 467(2) Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, as that section may be amended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time. Such provident benefits shall include the provision of legal advice and assistance.
- 20.3 No member shall be entitled to sums in excess of the limits set out in section 467(1) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 as that section may be amended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time.
- There shall be a provident benefits fund which shall only be used for paying provident benefits expressly authorised by these rules.
- 20.5 The Executive Council shall publish an annual financial report providing details of the Union's income and expenditure in the previous year.
- 20.6 The Executive Council shall cause to be kept proper accounting records with respect to the Union's transactions, assets and liabilities and establish and maintain a satisfactory system of control of its accounting records, its cash holdings and all receipts and payments in accordance with Sections 28 and 29 of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
- 20.7 The Accounts of the Union shall be audited at least once a year. The auditor shall be qualified in accordance with Section 34 of the Trade Union and Labour Relations Act (Consolidation) 1992. The appointment and removal of the auditor shall be subject to the provisions Section 35 of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
- 20.8 No member or members, or Branch, or any committee of members shall be permitted to use the name of the Union, or any machinery of the Union, in connection with any appeal for funds or establishment of any subsidiary benefit connected with a Branch, unless the conditions stated hereunder are accepted and the requisite official sanction obtained:

- (a) That the accounts of such funds and all documents in connection therewith shall be open at all times to inspection by the Union accountants.
- (b) That in the case of a regional or local appeal, the permission and sanction of the Regional Committee shall be first obtained, and thereafter is subject to the endorsement of the Executive Council.
- (c) That in the case of a national appeal, the permission and sanction of the Executive Council shall be first obtained.
- (d) Where such funds are properly raised they are included in the consolidated accounts of the Union.
- 20.9 In accordance with Section 30 of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation)

 Act 1992, any member of the Union has the right to access to any accounting records of
 the Union which are available for inspection, and which related to periods including a
 time when that person was a member of the Union.

21.0 Assets and Trustee Provisions

- 21.1 All property of the Union shall be held by a trustee company specified by the Executive Council (hereinafter called the Trustee Company) in trust for the Union in accordance with the provisions of these rules. For the avoidance of doubt, the property of the Union includes all funds and assets of the Union and its constituent bodies.
- 21.2 The Trustee Company shall invest, dispose of, or otherwise deal with the funds and other assets of the Union in accordance with the instructions of the Executive Council. Subject to the provision of these rules, the Executive Council shall have complete discretion how to instruct the Trustee Company to invest, dispose of or otherwise deal with the property of the Union.
- 21.3 The Trustee Company is the trustee of the Union.
- 21.4 The Executive Council may appoint and remove a second trustee where necessary to facilitate disposal of Union property, and solely for such purpose.

22.0 Expenses

A lay member engaged on Union business shall be entitled to such reasonable expenses and in such circumstances as may be decided by the Executive Council provided that the method of calculating such expenses and any subsequent alteration thereto must be reported to and shall cease to have effect unless ratified by the next Policy Conference of the Union.

23.0 Political Organisation

- 23.1 The CBS will not be affiliated to any particular political party.
- Neither the Union, nor any constituent part of the Union, shall affiliate to or give support to the candidates of any political party.
- 23.3 No portion of the Union's funds (local or national) shall be expended either directly or indirectly under this Rule or otherwise in furtherance of any of the political objects defined in the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992 as amended, and set out in Section 1 (a) of Rule 35, (Part 1 of the Rule Book), unless and until the provisions of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992 as amended, have been compiled with and Rules under the Act are duly in force.

24.0 Membership Discipline

- A member may be charged with: Acting in any way contrary to the rules or any duty or obligation imposed on that member by or pursuant to these rules whether in his/her capacity as a member, a holder of a lay office or a representative of the Union.
- 24.2 Being a party to any fraud on the Union or any misappropriation or misuse of its funds or property.
- 24.3 Knowingly, recklessly or in bad faith providing the Union with false or misleading information relating to a member or any other aspect of the Union's activities. Inciting, espousing or practising discrimination or intolerance amongst members on grounds of race, ethnic origin, religion, age, gender, disability or sexual orientation.

- 24.4 Bringing about injury to or discredit upon the Union or any member of the Union.
 Obtaining membership of the Union by false statement material to their admission into the Union or any evasion in that regard.
- 24.5 Disciplinary Hearings shall be organised and conducted under directions issued by the Executive Committee. These directions ensure that the process is fair and conducted in accordance with the principles of natural justice.
- 24.6 A charge under this rule may be heard by the Executive Council or delegated to a Regional Committee.

25.0 Official Announcements

The Union shall maintain a website and posting information on this website shall be the official means of making announcements to members on matters of general interest concerning the affairs of the Union.

26.0 Balloting of Members and Industrial Action

- The Executive Council, a Conference or a properly convened Branch Meeting may in furtherance of the Union's objectives decide to authorise, endorse, call or take industrial action, including strike action. All such action must be within the law and in accordance with, and in compliance of, all statutory obligations, inclusive of ballots, etc. Where a Branch decided to take action to protect immediate local interests, the General Secretary and Executive Council must be informed.
- 26.2 It is important to confirm that nothing contained in these Rules empowers a Branch or any other person, committee, group or body of persons to authorise, endorse, call or take industrial action without there being a statutory ballot and compliance in all other respects with the requirements of Part V of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992 as amended or replaced from time to time.

27.0 Voluntary Dissolution

- 27.1 The Union may be dissolved by a resolution supported by not less than 80% of votes cast in a postal ballot of all the members.
- 27.1 After discharging all debts and liabilities, the remaining assets of the Union, if any, shall be distributed equally between the members at the date of dissolution unless the members when voting for dissolution shall have resolved to the contrary.

Schedule of Founding Members

Riaz	AGHA	B Nirmal	KUMAR
Joanna	ALDOORI	Shyam	KUMAR
Ahmed	ALI-KHAN	Richard	LOVEGROVE
Keith	ALLISON	John	MACFIE
Jonathan	ARMITAGE	Satish	MADHAVARAJAN
Lindsey	BARKER	Patrick	MAGENNIS
Sherif	BAYOUMI	Nigel	MERCER
Meg	BIRKS	Anne	MITCHENER
lan	BOTTERILL	Kanwalraj	MOAR
Simon	BRAMHALL	Ram	MOORTHY
Paul Martin	BRENNAN	Fiona Jane	MURPHY
Naveen	CAVALE	Antony	NARULA
Bhupal	CHITNAVIS	Harjeet	NARULA
John	COLLIN	Amr	NIMER
Chris	DAWSON	Nora	NUGENT
Philip James	DREW	Mark	PETER
Jonathan	ELLENBOGEN	Andrew	PORTEOUS
Balgopal	ERADI	Purushothama	PRAVEEN
Adeshina	FAWOLE	Chittoor	RAJARAMAN

Michael	GAUNT	Anna	RAURELL
Laurence	GLANCZ	Matthew	ROLLIN
John	HARTLEY	Walid	SASI
Mark	HENLEY	David	SELVADURAI
Mark Thomas	HOLLAND- ELLIOTT	Joseph	SHALHOUB